
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT HEARINGS PANEL 

HEARING 5:  NATURAL HAZARDS (PART) 

 

 

Christchurch Replacement 

District Plan 
 

 

 

PRE-HEARING CONFERENCE at 

CHRISTCHURCH PLAN INDEPENDENT HEARING VENUE,  

348 MANCHESTER STREET, CHRISTCHURCH 

on 27 JANUARY 2015 

 

 

 

 

HEARING PANEL: 

Sir John Hansen 

Judge John Hassan 

Dr Phil Mitchell 

Sarah Dawson 

Jane Huria 

 



 Page 1 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 27.01.15 

  [10.07 am] 

 

SJH:   Good morning and welcome to everybody.  We realise this is a fairly 

major chapter that we are having to undertake, and this is a pre-hearing 

meeting relating to it.   5 

 

 Could I just make one or two general comments, because we will deal 

with the represented parties before we come to the others, I have asked 

the staff, quite deliberately, to have you be seated together around your 

concerns because it seems to us you naturally fall into rock-fall, 10 

flooding and liquefaction.  There will be some of you in all three or one 

or two, but generally the hearings will be structured around those three 

areas.   

 

 The second thing is, we note that a number of submitters have attached 15 

reports of experts to their submission.  You will need to give some 

thought of whether or not you are going to call those people as 

witnesses.  If in fact you do not, that limits the weight we can attach to 

that evidence, although we will certainly be taking it into account, the 

reason being that it has not been subject to questioning or cross-20 

examination.   

 

 The third matter I want to deal with is that the Panel thinks it may be of 

assistance to the Panel and to submitters if we carried out site visits to 

those properties where submitters request us to inspect.  You do not 25 

need to indicate to us in the course of the submissions, you can advise 

the secretariat when you leave.  We will need, because of our time 

constraints, some cooperation around the timing of that, but I am sure 

we can arrange that and, Ms Scott, if you would note that we would 

need somebody from the Council as guide, but someone who is not a 30 

witness or a party in the proposal before us. 

 

 The final thing is that if you are filing any documents or you are 

emailing us about anything, could you please put your submitter 

number, your name and the title of the hearing, which in this case of 35 

course is “natural hazards”.   

 

 So without further ado, we will go straight to the agenda. 

 

  [10.10 am] 40 

 

 The Friend of the Submitter is Dr Cowie, who is sitting at the back 

table there.  If there are matters that you are unsure about when we are 

finished do not hesitate to consult him – he is here to assist you and 

help you in any way he can; particularly around the form of your 45 
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submission, the appearance before us as a Hearing’s Panel in due 

course, and matters of that sort. 

 

 This hearing covers natural hazards and the areas that have been 

notified, and as I have said, they naturally fall into rock-fall, flooding 5 

and liquefaction.  Once we have heard from the submitters it is likely 

that we will split the hearing along those lines, so that we will hear the 

expert evidence and the submissions in one area at a time.  So there 

will be staging of topics around that. 

 10 

 To date there has been some expert evidence caucusing – that is 

conferencing of the experts and is open to people with the necessary 

qualifications.  If any of you feel you have an expert who you intend to 

call as a witness, or who should be attending these and has not done so, 

again, you should discuss that with the Friend of the Submitter or the 15 

Secretariat. 

 

 There will be an opportunity for mediation, which will include 

submitters in it, but conferencing of experts is for the qualified experts 

only.  We will then turn and look at the procedural matters and work 20 

through those – I have mentioned site visits and mediation and if there 

is anything that is missed in the agenda that has been circulated, when 

you have the opportunity to speak, do not hesitate to raise that question 

with us, or more than one question if that be the case, so I think we 

necessarily need to hear from you first, Ms Scott. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 

 Just in terms of how the hearing will be organised and the staging of 

topics, Council absolutely agrees that it makes sense to work through 30 

the three different topics.  The Council’s preference is that it provides 

all of its evidence and its case to you at the start so that the Panel has a 

clear understanding of the Council’s case and it’s position and there are 

some cross-overs particularly in terms of planning matters, but that 

would obviously be presented in a logical fashion, and each of the 35 

witnesses would be separated out into the respective three topics. 

 

SJH:   So presumably then, when we got to the staging part, your experts in 

individual fields will be here and available to be recalled and such like 

if necessary? 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we can make that happen. 

 

SJH:   And just one further query that I am sure would help the Panel and 

submitters.  Is it proposed to call individual evidence for the properties 45 
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that have submitted and raised concerns, or will the evidence just be of 

a general nature? 

 

MS SCOTT:   The evidence is of a general nature, but where site specific 

issues have been raised the witnesses are looking at all of the 5 

submissions, so site specific matters are being addressed through 

evidence as well, and that is a process that the witnesses are working 

through at the moment, it is very time consuming, but through the 

Evidence-in-Chief are, the witnesses are looking at working through 

the list of submissions and addressing them and taking the merits of the 10 

submission- - - 

 

SJH:   And taking that a stage further; has there be any discussion between 

experts, site specific, or with site specific submitters and Council 

Officers to date? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   There have been with their, if submitters have called experts and 

brought them to the caucusing and I understand that has happened 

through that process and there have been some discussions that have 

flowed out of the caucusing. 20 

 

 I understand that they, some of the Council’s witnesses have been 

approached separately and have been having discussions and I 

understand that they have actually flowed on from discussions that 

were happening prior to notification of the Chapter as well. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just following on from that, Ms Scott, so a number of 

submitters, for instance, submit around ground truthing, in other words 

looking at the factual foundation questions around what flows from that 

in terms of the plan provisions proposed, in terms of that factual 30 

inquiry, will the evidence address that? 
 
SJH:   Could you speak into the microphone – they cannot hear you at the back. 

 

  [10.15 am] 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry, I think I will just repeat that question because it 

may not have come through, but just following on from the Chairman’s 

question there, various submitters, for instance, raise questions around 

the fact finding aspects, ground truthing is a phrase that is commonly 40 

used, submissions raising concerns in that area around whether or not 

there has been enough analysis at a site specific level of issues. 

 

 Now, it is for the Council to decide how to run its case of course, and 

we are not trying to suggest anything there, but will the evidence in 45 
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some way cover those issues so that submitters can read the Council’s 

position in its evidence in terms of how it may relate to their issues? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, it will, sir, and I can also advise that some of the Council’s 

witnesses, the relevant ones, have been going out to site over the last 5 

week or so and are continuing to do that. I understand it takes up to 

about half a day to do one site visit, so they have a list that they are 

going out and I understand directly contacting the submitters to do that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 10 

 

SJH:   All right, well perhaps you would go on and suggest a timetable that, 

you will have looked at for filing of evidence and matters such as that, 

Ms Scott. 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. So the evidence timeframe that - - - 

 

SJH:   We just want a greater lead in, that is what we have explained 

previously, the maters to date because of the time constraints, we are 

very restricted and gave the Panel little time for reading and we just 20 

want slightly longer timeframes this time around. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. The Council is currently working towards Friday, 

13 February, for exchange of its evidence, with submitter evidence to 

be provided by Friday, 20 February, and then the Council to provide its 25 

rebuttal evidence by 27 February, and, sir, that is set out in the report of 

the first pre-hearing meeting. 

 

SJH:   Yes, and on 27 February you could also file in opening? 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and in terms of the directions which were in that report, 

it includes that other parties legal submissions would be filed, a hard 

copy the evening before, I think it is by 5.00 pm the day before they are 

presented, but the Council’s would be the Friday before. 

 35 

SJH:   Are you able to confirm at this stage the number of witnesses you are 

calling and I think you have some overseas experts, will they be 

attending in person or will they - - - 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, there are - - - 40 

 

SJH:   Is there no one from the Crown here today? Are you calling joint 

evidence? 

 

MS SCOTT:   We are. I have not been asked to appear for the Crown today. 45 
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SJH:   Okay. 

 

MS SCOTT:   We have 18 witnesses on the Council’s list, two of those are 

shared with the Crown or are called jointly by the Crown.  

 5 

SJH:   And they will all be attending in person, or? 

 

MS SCOTT:   They will. Mr Tony Teague is from the UK, but he will be 

travelling to New Zealand to present his evidence and I understand that 

we will be able to have him available on the first day, on Monday the 10 

2nd. 

 

SJH:   I just find it surprising the Crown are not here today to be honest. 

Perhaps someone could make a call and – could you call and see if 

there  is an oversight in the Buddle Findlay Office, please? Thank you.  15 

 

MS SCOTT:   We do have one witness, sir, that is Mr Greg White, and he is 

involved in the flooding, where we have some availability issues, he is 

out of the country in that first week. We can endeavour to get him in by 

video link on, I think it is the Tuesday, the 3rd, he said he is available, 20 

or if it would assist the Panel better to have him here in person, perhaps 

he could be called in the second week if he could be slotted in at some 

stage.  

 

SJH:   Well, just let me check. Yes, I think it is better to have him in person, 25 

but we will have to stage it so it is before we hear the counter evidence 

on that topic, so that is a matter you can organise with the secretariat, 

but I think rather than do video links, which are very useful but not the 

most satisfactory manner, we will arrange that to take place in the 

second week. 30 

 

  [10.20 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you, sir.  So he is involved in the flooding area, so 

if that was to come last that would probably work quite logically. 35 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you. 

 40 

SJH:   Any other matters you wish to raise? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, that is all, sir.   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Ms Appleyard, you are here for the Port I take it? 45 
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MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, and the reason I am here, because we obviously 

already have the last pre-hearing Minute, which we are working to that 

for a timetable, is that we were not actually recorded as having 

appeared at that.  So I just wanted to make sure that that was corrected, 

and really just here to make sure nothing changes.  So we are, for now, 5 

working with that timetable.   

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Thank you.   10 

 

SJH:   I think we should now just go through the submitters.  If you would 

make the microphone – sorry, there is another legal representative.  I 

am sorry.   

 15 

MS EVELEIGH:   Thank you, sir.  Ms Eveleigh, I am appearing for Memorial 

Avenue Investments, Orchard Trust and Kennaway Park Joint Venture.  

There is no particular matters I wanted to raise with you, I am just here 

to keep track of the process. 

 20 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  We will start at this table over here.  Would you 

mind – just give your name so that it goes into the transcript.  Describe 

whether your concern is rock-fall, flooding or liquefaction, and we will 

try to deal with rock-fall first.  If we start at the front table please.  Are 

you rock-fall people, or? 25 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   Yes, Richard Holyoake representing the Holyoake Family 

Trust, and it is a rock-fall issue, and yes, wish to be heard and it is 

really around ground truthing, as it has already been raised. 

 30 

SJH:   Are you proposing to call any expert evidence? 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   No, I am not.   

 

SJH:   And do you wish to submit or you wish to give evidence at the hearing? 35 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   Submit I think, rather than give evidence, yes. 

 

SJH:   All right, okay, thank you.  

 40 

MR YOUNG:   My name is John Young, representing my wife and myself.  

We have got land that sits below Richard’s, we have got a submission 

in with a fair amount of detail about the life risk above us compared 

with the neighbouring property and a huge discrepancy - - - 

 45 
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SJH:   Sorry, I should have said this.  For the transcript as well, it would be 

useful if you give your submitter number if you have it. 

 

MR YOUNG:   Yes, sorry, 136. 

 5 

SJH:   And Mr Holyoake what was your submitter number? 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   606. 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you. 10 

 

MR YOUNG:   And the neighbour below me, Gerald Cleary, he has got a 

submission in as well, related to the same line. 

 

SJH:   Okay. 15 

 

MR YOUNG:   And he has got a legal submission in, I think, with two other 

joint parties.   

 

SJH:   Your interests are the same, have the two of you and Mr Cleary 20 

discussed a joint submission, the possibility of a joint submission? 

 

MR YOUNG:   We have not, as such.  Quite happy to, we have put in - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, no, I do not want to limit you in anyway, because you have the 25 

right to submit and we want to hear from you - - - 

 

MR YOUNG:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   - - - but it may be by working together that you will have some common 30 

points that you want to make. 

 

MR YOUNG:   Yes, and I am really quite happy for that.   

 

SJH:   Right. 35 

 

MR YOUNG:   All I want is just a fair hearing. 

 

SJH:   Yes, okay.  All right, thank you. 

 40 

MR YOUNG:   Thank you, sir.  

 

SJH:   If you have any questions about the process, do ask them as well when 

we are going through here. 

 45 
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MR KINGHAM:   My name is Simon Kingham, and I am sorry I do not have 

my number.  Also submitting on rock-fall, similar to these guys.  

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. 

 5 

MR CLARK:   My name is Edward Clark, I am here with my wife, Kathleen 

Miller, and I am sorry we do not have a submitter number – we have 

one, but we do not know it.  We need to do some research to find it, so 

I apologise for that. 

 10 

SJH:   I am sure we can find it. 

 

MR CLARK:   We have lodged a submission with regards to part of our 

property being in the rock-fall hazard zone 2.  A little thin strip of it is 

on our property, varying from zero to three metres, and our aim is to 15 

have that removed from our property, that it is probably within the 

margin of error of the research.  So we have that submission in and we 

would like to speak to that when the opportunity occurs. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   20 

 

DR COWIE:   Sir, Mr Clark’s submission number is 599. 

 

SJH:   Thank you Dr Cowie. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Can I just ask – the previous submitter that stood up in the 

corner there, sorry, I missed your name, Simon King or Simon - - - 

 

MR KINGHAM:   Kingham. 

 30 

  [10.25 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you are number, I think we have got here, is 162, I 

think. 

 35 

MR KINGHAM:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS COOK:   Right, my name is Tracey Cook and also I do not have my 40 

submission number on me this morning, so I apologise about that.  I am 

also querying the rock hazard.  We have both management one and two 

on a section of our property, which is towards the bottom end of the 

land, so, we would like that removed as well because there is actually 

no evidence of it actually being there, so. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Is your property at 347a Waterloo Road? 

 

MS COOK:   It is, yes, that is the one. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you are submitter number 1194. 5 

 

MS COOK:   1194, lovely, thank you. 

 

SJH:   And you wish to submit, or, rather than evidence? 

 10 

MS COOK:   I would prefer to just submit rather than give evidence, thank 

you. 

 

SJH:   Right, okay, thank you. 

 15 

MS COOK:   Thanks. 

 

MR WARD:   Good morning, my name is Martin Ward, I have been asked by 

Alessandro and Wilma Laryn to speak on their behalf.  They are 

unaware of a submitter number, but I am sure someone will quickly 20 

find it.  They own a vineyard in the Shalamar Drive, if that helps with 

that search. 

 

 They have had not contact yet from the City Council concerning 

ground truthing matters, but they remain optimistic and hopeful that 25 

that might happen.  Alessandro will provide a submission, but he is a 

scientist and his, some of his material would stand as evidence on that 

basis. 

 

SJH:   So, on that basis, he would, he will submit, but he will also be sworn and 30 

give evidence? 

 

MR WARD:   That is correct. 

 

SJH:   Okay. 35 

 

MR WARD:   And their matters concern rock-fall, liquefaction and flooding. 

 

SJH:   Right, thank you. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Ward, just to clarify, I think your submission number 

for your client will be 399 and I understand your client is A&H Laryn 

and also for Blue Sun? 

 

MR WARD:   Yes. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR LEWIS:   My name is Warren Lewis, submission 326 – rock-fall, and also 

submission 328, appearing for Cashmere Park Trust and Cashmere 

Rural Land Owners, on flooding. 5 

 

SJH:   I am sorry, just before you go, you wish to submit or do you wish to call 

evidence, or you wish to do both? 

 

MR LEWIS:   I wish to submit. 10 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. 

 

MR ABBOTT:   My name is Chris Abbott, we have a bach at Boulder Bay, I 

will be submitting on behalf of many baches at Boulder Bay.  It is a 15 

unique geography.  I do not know my submitter number, but I think 

Brent will be able to just provide that. 

 

MR COWIE:   1058 and 1059 is the Taylor’s Mistake Association and 

Mr Abbott has a personal submission 904 as well. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   904, or, yes, 904, yes, okay. 

 

MR ABBOTT:   I do not know the difference between giving evidence and just 

submitting, so if you could explain that to me, I- - -  25 

 

SJH:   Well evidence is where you are sworn – you give evidence on oath and 

you will be subject to any applications to cross-examine. 

 

MR ABBOTT:   Mm’hm. 30 

 

SJH:   Submitting is where you tell us what your position is, we can ask you 

questions, but it is not sworn evidence. 

 

MR ABBOTT:   I am very happy to give sworn evidence if that is required. 35 

 

SJH:   Right.  Now the Taylor’s Mistake Association, is that an incorporated 

society? 

 

MR ABBOTT:   I am not, this is my personal submission, I am part of the 40 

Taylor’s Mistake Association and I will give that one to Jim to answer 

in a moment. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  So you will submit, which is speaking to us, but 

you will also give sworn evidence? 45 
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MR ABBOTT:   Happy to do so. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  And are you calling any expert evidence? 

 

MR ABBOTT:   At this stage I do not know because I do not understand the 5 

process- - -   

 

SJH:   Well we will need to notified reasonably soon if you want to call expert 

evidence because if you have got an expert they should be taking part 

in the conferencing that has been going on. 10 

 

MR ABBOTT:   I would submit with due deference that as far as Boulder Bay 

is concerned with our history there, we are the experts. 

 

SJH:   Very modest of you. 15 

 

MR ABBOTT:   We have, our family has 50-60 years history. 

 

SJH:   Understood. 

 20 

MR ABBOTT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR TURPIN:   I am Jim Turpin from the Taylor’s Mistake Association and the 25 

Taylor’s Mistake Association Land Company, and I think someone just 

said we were 1059, our submission number.  We are possibly in a, we 

will be submitting and we will give evidence if that is the way.  We are 

not quite sure at the moment – we are in a fairly unique position that 

we are in consultation, and the Council have been very good to us, and 30 

there are a number of other issues other than the rock-fall hazard which 

is our main thing and the cliff collapse sort of thing. 

 

  [10.30 am] 

 35 

 We are in meetings with them, and I am not sure where these will be, at 

what stage they will be at.  The Council setup a working party in fact to 

hear our different things.  Where we will be with those by the time it 

looks like we have to submit evidence by the 20th of February, if that is 

correct what you - - -  40 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR TURPIN:   Well, we are not meeting with them until, they are having a 

meeting tomorrow and then to sort out their formulas and we are not 45 

meeting them until the 13th and I am not sure what is happening after 
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that so I cannot be specific if we are going to have an expert, if we will 

need to, our preferred method would be to get in some mediation type 

mediation if we could. 

 

SJH:   Well if you feel that it would be useful for your Association and others 5 

to mediate with the Council, we can facilitate that process. 

 

MR TURPIN:   We may not need it. 

 

SJH:   No, no, I can understand that but if you feel you do need assistance you 10 

can talk to the Secretariat and you can also talk to Dr Cowie and we 

can get a facilitator to assist that process for you. 

 

MR TURPIN:   Yes, while we may have a small number of geotech things our 

major concern is what we believe the nonsense of applying 100 percent 15 

occupancy rates to determine the areas.  We can understand the reason, 

originally these were made because you have to have a look at the 

whole city, but we believe that an area of holiday occupation, very 

small things, it should be adjusted to reflect perhaps 10 percent 

occupancy. 20 

 

SJH:   All right, well you will have to see where you get to with the Council 

and then review that, but I suggest that you need to have a default 

position that you start preparing your evidence so you are able to meet 

the timelines. 25 

 

MR TURPIN:   Good thinking. 

 

SJH:   Now, just one thing that you should do if you are representing the 

Association you should say you are authorised by, in your evidence 30 

because you will have to file that written evidence. 

 

MR TURPIN:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   You need to say in it you are authorised by the Association to give 35 

evidence on their behalf, just to cover that off. 

 

MR TURPIN:   Fine, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Okay, all right, thank you. 40 

 

MR INGLIS:   Thank you.  I am Graham Inglis, I am the submitter on behalf of 

myself and my wife, Jenny Gearing (ph 2.32) for number 80 Cressy 

Terrace in Lyttelton.  Our submission is largely around ground truthing 

again and mitigation works that have happened between February 2011 45 

and the current day. 
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 I have a question about the Council’s ground truthing, we know from 

talking to neighbours that the ground truthing has been done on our 

property but we were not advised in advance of that happening and we 

have not seen any outcomes from it, so will we be able to see that 5 

evidence in advance of the hearing? 

 

SJH:   Ms Scott will come we will come back to, and as far as you are able you 

would address that I would have thought, but it is going to have to be 

part of your evidence anyway so, yes, you will see it, but one would 10 

hope particularly where ground truthing is the issue that the Council 

will be making every endeavour to have the sites visited and 

discussions take place.   

 

 It maybe, Ms Scott, you give consideration to having mediations which 15 

we can facilitate as I have indicated for the liquefaction, the flooding, 

and the rock-fall groupings as we move towards the hearing, but I will 

hear you when we come back on that. 

 

 Thank you and you are going to submit or you wish to call evidence or 20 

both, submit thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Inglis, I think your number is 1139. 

 

MR INGLIS:   Thank you. 25 

 

MR FLOERL:   My name is Oliver Floerl and my partner, Lisa Peacock and I 

have a section at number 25H Walkers Road in Lyttelton.  I do not 

know my submission number. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   1120. 

 

MR FLOERL:   1120, we have been designated the rock-fall hazard 

management area two, and we are submitting against that because 

according to the risk mapping, our section is actually not within this 35 

area but the boundaries of this hazard area go within 50 metres around 

our section.   

 

 There is an easement that we share with four potential neighbours, they 

are all empty sections and this easement there is a strip about 30 metres 40 

from the boundary from our section where a two metre wide strip off 

this hazard management area intersects with the easement, or which 

will be a driveway.  We are hoping to that removed because our section 

is nowhere near that spot and we do not occupy that part. 

 45 

SJH:   Is it just the drive, what would be the driveway? 
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MR FLOERL:   It is, yes. 

 

  [10.35 am] 

 5 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr McKenzie? 

 

MR McKENZIE:   Good morning I am Andrew McKenzie appearing on behalf 

of the family company, Yullundri, who owns 23 acres in Bowenvale 

Valley.  Our submission relates to firstly a question as to whether all 10 

these zones are necessary at all and then considering the specifics of the 

site. 

 

 As to where to go, we are open to mediation and are really trying to 

seek information as to who made the decision to draw the line as 15 

opposed to here, who went on the site when they did all this, and that is 

something which I would hope we could have the opportunity to 

perhaps cross-examine, I do not anticipate at this stage that we would 

be wanting to call evidence as such, but would like the opportunity if a 

Council witness says “we done it for this reason and this is why”, to 20 

have the opportunity to consider the information that that is based on 

and then to potentially ask questions of that witness in a confined 

matter – there may well be some others – I see Mr Holyoake’s in the 

general area as well, so there might be some merit in an area wide 

consideration - - -  25 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR McKENZIE:   - - - but I am open to - - -  

 30 

SJH:   Well if you would discuss with them and of course there will be cross-

examination, leave to apply for cross-examination direction.  Are you 

going to submit and call evidence or? 

 

MR McKENZIE:   I imagine just submit.  I am not sure, today, standing here, 35 

why the Council has drawn these lines where they have and what 

information they based that on.  It is contrary to some information we 

have previously received, so once I obtain that information I will use 

the assistance of your Friend of the Submitters to try and work that out, 

once I have got that information then I will be in a position to look at 40 

matters, but I appreciate your timetable with respect to experts - - -  

 

SJH:   Yes. 
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MR McKENZIE:   - - - and I imagine the points probably able to be made by 

targeted questioning should that be available and should leave be 

granted at the appropriate stage. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 5 

 

MR McKENZIE:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr McKenzie, just before you sit down, who were your 

client’s again, those that made the submission, the name of the client 10 

making the submission? 

 

MR McKENZIE:   Yullundri, Y-U-L-L-U-N-D-R-I Pastoral and Development 

Company. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR McKENZIE:   Sorry, I do not have the submitter number.  Thank you. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Hello, I am Sue Stubenvoll, also from Lyttelton, from 20 

40 Brenchley Road, my submission number is 845.  I had three experts 

at caucusing and I was hoping that today the Panel would be good 

enough to present the findings from that caucusing to get the - - -  

 

SJH:   Well we cannot do that because we have not received it either, but as 25 

soon as it is received, it will be posted online. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Thank you.  And I will be making – I have put in a 

submission, I will call the experts again if necessary but I would hope 

that mediation would occur before that. 30 

 

 I understand that geotechs from Council have been visiting different 

properties but they have – certainly did not contact me but yesterday I 

found a card of Mr Mark (INDISTINCT 3.30) in the road above my 

property, so he may have been there without my knowledge.  Thank 35 

you. 

 

MS YOUNG:   I am Karen Young, submitter number 792 from the Lyttelton 

Group.  We have got a letter from Simpson Grierson representing the 

Council to say that our boundaries will be changed back, because it 40 

simply was a mistake made by the Council, and that is all except for 

number 4 Norton Close which we do dispute, because Ian Wright’s 

report says there is a rock in a situation which has not appeared on any 

other geotech report including our copy report, so we do dispute that. 

 45 
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 The people that live at number 4 do not want to contest it because of 

stress and financial outlays, they do not want to contest that but we do 

dispute it, so we want that heard. 

 

 I tried to submit extra documents last week to add to our submission 5 

but it was – it came back to me saying that, that it had to be submitted 

at a later stage, so I just wanted to find out when that was going to be 

and how we were going to hear about that. 

 

SJH:   Well I am not sure what was it you tried to submit.  Was it a new 10 

submission or was it evidence or what? 

 

  [10.40 am] 

 

MS YOUNG:   It was extra documents, the ones from Simpson Grierson, a 15 

letter from 4 Norton Close and Ian Wright’s report, which did not go in 

with our original submission. It may need to go to your Panel. 

 

SJH:   Are they subsequent documents? 

 20 

MS YOUNG:   Everything happened after the original one, yes. 

 

SJH:   Right.  Well, I will come to what the submission contains and if you 

wish to file a new submission and speaking to it in that, when we have 

gone through everybody, but that is the time where you file that with 25 

the attached documents.  Okay? 

 

MS YONUG:   Right, thank you. 

 

SJH:   But it sounds to me like this is another case where there should be some 30 

mediation because there is only one property still involved in your 

submission, is that correct? 

 

MS YOUNG:   That is correct. 

 35 

SJH:   Right, thank you.  

 

MS OAKLEY:   Good morning.  Julia Oakley, my submission number is 949, 

regarding 23K Walkers Road, which is a section that I purchased after 

being red zoned in Lyttelton previously. 40 

 

 I have already been represented by counsel in earlier meetings and in 

other submissions, number FS1243, and FS1268, and represented at the 

expert witness meeting by David Bell, geotech, at the caucusing 

meeting. 45 
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 Now, last Monday, Dr Mark Yetton came up and ground truthed my 

property and contrary to the Coffey preliminary report and the David 

Bell Preliminary Rock-fall reports which advised, or recommended that 

my property was consider very low risk, and it has been placed in rock 

hazard zones one and two.  5 

 

 Their reports advise that they thought it was very low risk and 

recommended it be removed from those zones.  Mark Yetton’s verbal 

thoughts were that he strongly doubts that that would happen, and even 

mitigation work would not result in any change to those boundaries. 10 

 

 So what I have done after conferring with my lawyer and geotechs and 

so far, because of the stress and the expense, because I am about to try 

and rebuild, I have decided to just put in an independent submission, 

leave that in place.  15 

 

SJH:   But you would you be prepared to enter into a mediation session? 

 

MS OAKLEY:   Definitely. 

 20 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MS OAKLEY:   I believe that having two geotech reports to the contrary, 

saying that they do not agree with the zoning on my property. certainly 

it is worthwhile pursuing. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS OAKLEY:   Thank you. 

 30 

MR CONNOR:   Thank you.  My name is Ian Connor.  I am representing 

myself and my wife, Ruth Woodley.  We have a property at 8 Balmoral 

Lane where we are appealing against the clifftop hazard management 

zoning two, which we believe is based on incorrect geotechnical data, 

incorrect mass land movement data and incorrect inspection of the 35 

property.  I am planning to submit myself.  I am actually an 

experienced charted professional civil engineer, so I am happy to have 

sworn evidence. 

 

 We also have expert witnesses.  Our submission number is 292, and we 40 

are submitting also under a group led by Pearse Smith, Cameron and 

Co., submission 1097.  And as part of that we are having expert 

witnesses who have been involved in the caucusing. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Connor, are you aware that Cameron and Co. will be 

presenting a joint legal submission for their various clients?  Do you 

know any information on that? 

 

MR CONNOR:   Well, I know it is part of a group, but because we are on top 5 

of a cliff, rather than rock-fall, the other submissions are parallel but 

they are not associated to ours.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR WRIGHT:   My name is Marshall Wright, I am representing myself, plus 

my wife Anne.  We live at 1 Trecastle Lane on Broadoaks, and if you 

are a snob it is called Cashmere, and if you are not it is called 15 

something else (INDISTINCT 4.47). 

 

 I am neither a rock-fall, flooding, or whatever the other one was, we are 

located at proposed mass movement hazard management area two.  Our 

residential part of our section is some 20 metres away, with an 20 

elevation of at least eight metres.  It happens to clip our section of the 

lane by a maximum of 10 centimetres and we will be requesting a site 

visit, and remembering where that clips our place it is still another 10 

metres away from where the actual movement is.   

 25 

  [10.45 am] 

 

 The other interesting factor is that the Christchurch City Council, in its 

wisdom, has in actual fact recently sealed the area, this part of this 

mass movement, at a cost I would estimate at $500,000, having 30 

previously been the Associate Town Clerk with the Christchurch City 

Council. 

 

 We will be doing a submission.  As I say, it is all to do with the lane 

strip and we will be asking for a site visit please.   35 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MS SMITH:   Good morning.  My name is Paula Smith.  I am the Chairperson 

of the Lyttelton Mt Herbert Community Board.  Our submission was 40 

one in support of those people in our community who are involved in 

this process and we are seeking that the lines on the maps and the rules 

fairly reflect the hazard. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   45 
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MR CRAIG:  Good morning.  My name is Andrew Craig.  I live at 25B 

Ramahana Road.  I am sorry, I do not have my submission number.  

My submission is going to be more general rather than site specific, 

and it relates to the assessment matters where the relief I seek is to have 

some of those deleted.   5 

 

SJH:   I am sorry, what matters? 

 

MR CRAIG:   The assessment matters.   

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I think your number is four.   

 

SJH:   And you see to have some of those deleted as the relief you are seeking? 

 

MR CRAIG:   That is correct.  They specifically concern visual, natural 15 

character and ecological considerations, and my view is that they do 

not relate to the matter that is being managed, and secondly, they are 

inconsistent with the remainder of the Living Hills zone.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Craig, in your capacity as an expert will you be calling 20 

your own - - -  

 

MR CRAIG:   No, I will not be calling expert evidence.  I will just be making a 

submission. 

 25 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR COLLINS:   Good morning.  My name is David Collins.  I am appearing 

in relation to two submissions, the north end of Governor’s Bay – I do 

not know the numbers I am afraid, in relation to rock-fall. 30 

 

 One is David Collins and Shavaughn (ph 3.13) Collins.  Our property 

has a house on the edge of Governor’s bay and the property extends up 

to the hillside above, right up to the Council reserve.  And the other 

relates to my daughter Sian Rose Collins and Peter McDonald.  They 35 

own an adjoining four acres of residential land also at the north end of 

Governor’s Bay. 

 

 Now our issue is quite simple.  All this land is a different catchment 

from the land on the western side where there are some big rocks.  I 40 

have written to the Council saying “can you tell us which rocks we are 

talking about so we can perhaps send an expert to go and look at 

them?”  The Council does not seem to be able to do that, and so we are 

seeking that the restrictions are withdrawn. 

 45 
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 I am tempted to give evidence as a planner, but I think I will just give 

some submissions about the general principle of controls without 

evidence and possibly cross-examine, if the evidence that Council files 

indicates who drew the lines on the map, I might like to cross-examine 

those.   5 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR GRIFFIN:   Good morning.  My name is Murray Griffin.  Our submission 

is on behalf of myself and my wife Cheryl Jackson.  Now I have not 10 

got our submitter number, but we are at 358 Marine Drive.  We own a 

bare section in Bridle Path Road and our submission relates to the fact 

that it is in the slope instability management area, and I guess is a 

secondary submission to some who are here primarily around 

residential buildings and subdivision, our submission is looking at the 15 

life-risk ratios and how that applies for other options for our land. 

 

  [10.50 am] 

 

 So we are just looking to get clarification, really I guess through the 20 

Council and the Plan in terms of what other options could be looked at 

in relation to the life risk that is currently put in the plan. 

 

SJH:   And you wish to submit or call evidence? 

 25 

MR GRIFFIN:   We will just submit, yes. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.   

 

MR SCOTT:   Good morning, my name is Marty Scott, and I live at bach 31 at 30 

Taylors Mistake, and I wish to make a submission.  I believe my 

number if 927, and its rock-fall hazard.  It has been issued with a 

section 124 Notice, and it is red zoned, however, I am looking for this 

to be revisited, as there was no rock-fall in the area, and in addition 

there are public tracks in front of me, beside me and behind me.  Thank 35 

you. 

 

SJH:   And do you wish to submit or call evidence? 

 

MR SCOTT:   I wish to submit. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR ZIMPRICH:   I am Wolfgang Zimprich and I am representing my wife 

who owns the property at 9 Endeavour Place in Lyttelton.  So far we 45 

have not got a number, only an information letter from the Christchurch 
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Council that our property is partly rock-fall hazard management area 

one and partly management area two. 

 

 We want to make a submission and present evidence in writing and 

photos, that putting it into these areas is wrong.  The rocks have 5 

actually roll up hill, we a sitting on a ridge.  Maps from GNS show that 

rock-fall risk does not affect our property, and we have two engineering 

reports regarding the development of the area, and regarding due 

diligence we did, before we bought the property, about risks associated 

with the location of the site which show that there is no risk involved.  10 

And it addresses even the matter of rock-fall when the development 

previously started.  

 

SJH:   Have you had anyone visit your site? 

 15 

MR ZIMPRICH:   Not yet.   

 

SJH:   All right.  And you wish to submit and you wish to call evidence as 

well? 

 20 

MR ZIMPRICH:   We will provide evidence in documents and photos.  We 

actually make ground truthing ourselves, because we are not aware that 

anything happened around that area from the side of CERA or from the 

side of Council, and we can actually prove that some content of the 

GNS maps are wrong.   25 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And I think your submission number is 801.   

 30 

MS FREWEN:   Hello, I am Andrea Frewen (ph 3.33), and I am representing 

Johnathan Chambers and the Johnathan Chambers Family Trust, who 

are at 399 Governor’s Bay Road.  We will be submitting, and we would 

like to request a site visit.  We do not know that anyone has been to the 

property yet.   35 

 

SJH:   Now, just distinguish between Council’s experts visiting the site or 

Council officers and the Panel’s visit.  

 

MS FREWEN:   Right.  Okay, but I am not - - - 40 

 

SJH:   So we will come back to the Council and what they intend to do. 

 

MS FREWEN:   Right, okay. 

 45 
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SJH:   But you will have the opportunity to advise staff if you want the Panel to 

visit the site. 

 

MS FREWEN:   All right.  We may provide evidence if it is required, once we 

know a little bit more about it, we are a bit behind the eight ball on this, 5 

unfortunately.  But we will be submitting. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.   

 

MR SNOEP:   Good morning, my name is Otto Snoep.  My submission is 10 

number 80, at 223 Taylors Mistake Road.  I will be submitting, and if 

necessary provide evidence.  I believe ground truthing with the Council 

could resolve the issue, or I would be open to mediation, a site specific 

issue relating to liquefaction over the site. 

 15 

  [10.55 am] 

 

MS STUART:   Liz Stuart, representing Castle Rock, c/- Aston Consultants, 

physical address is 125 Scruttons Road and 195 Port Hills Road.  

Submission number is 983. 20 

 

 I have not got confirmation from my clients that they would like to 

submit or put in evidence, but I think at this stage if we just say we will 

submit and we can get back to you at a later date with confirmation. 

 25 

SJH:   Well, we will make orders as to the timetable and if they choose to file 

evidence within that timeframe, of course they are at liberty to do so. 

 

MS STUART:   Yes, perfect.  Could we request the hearing Panel undertake a 

site visit? 30 

 

SJH:   If you want us to. 

 

MS STUART:   Yes. 

 35 

SJH:   Well, as I say, you will need to tell the staff at the end of the meeting. 

 

MS STUART:   Okay, and relief sought is just the client would like both their 

sites removed from the flood management area. 

 40 

MR DEW:   Good morning, my name is Greg Drew.  My submitter number is 

313.  It is about mapping of a flood area, flood issue, I will talk to the 

Secretariat afterwards about a site visit by Council staff, which I think 

will quickly resolve the issue, if not I will come back to you.  We might 

have to ask you to visit it also. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Is this to do with an area of your drive or something, is it? 

 

MR DEW:   That is it, yes, areas of the drive and intermittently along one 

boundary, the flood management area seems to poke into it at regular 

intervals.   5 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR RICHARDS:   Hi, I am Simon Richards, 117 Garlands Road and I will 

probably submit regarding the flood zone, and I do not have my 10 

number, sorry. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   153, I think. 

 

MR RICHARDS:   Thank you. 15 

 

SJH:   So you are submitting, not calling evidence? 

 

MR RICHARDS:   Yes, I will be submitting, maybe even talk about a site visit. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MR RICHARDS:   Sorry, excuse me, I forgot to mention I will be making 

submissions rather than producing evidence.   

 25 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MR BROAD:   Good morning, my name is Don Broad, I am at 137 Knowles 

Street, and I do not have the number but Brent will find it no doubt. 

 30 

 I am sort of half expecting not to have to submit, I am sort of waiting – 

I am not sure what the process has been, but I have raised a couple of 

technical questions in my submission regarding the flood zone; we are 

on Knowles Street where the flood zone comes up to the edge of it, we 

are actually on the edge of the street, and there is a jagged line 35 

extending sort of a metre and a half and it is an imprecise line on the 

maps because it goes like this, which intersects about the front metre of 

my section.  One half of that is wrong because the site has been raised 

already and a garage was built there 10 years ago, so it is only in one 

corner, and the corner cannot be built on under the existing or new plan 40 

because you cannot build within that driveway.   

 

 So my submission has been that (a) I have a problem, but secondly I 

think the plan needs to be reviewed in terms of if you have an area 

which is in that flood zone, on the edge of it particularly, as I know my 45 

neighbours, who I do not think they have submitted, they will also be 
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adversely affected by obviously the perceived perception that the area 

is actually flood prone, where it is not because you cannot build there, 

so consequently that is of – I will continue either to mediation or 

submission, whichever is appropriate.   

 5 

 I will not ask you to come to my section because I think that is a 

complete waste of taxpayer money.  I have submitted photographs 

which I think should show the height of the section raised, and I am 

sure the Council plans have more details. 

 10 

SJH:   Right, have you had any discussion with Council staff? 

 

MR BROAD:   None at all.  I went to the meetings in the shopping mall and 

they said make a submission and wait, so I have been doing that. 

 15 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And I think your submission is 1118. 

 

MS HALL:   Hello, I am Kylie Hall from Baseline Group Limited.  We put a 20 

further submission in on behalf of Reba Holdings Limited, our further 

submission was in support of Halswell Trust, Cashmere Park Trust, 

Cashmere Rural Landowners and Cashmere Fields, and ours is a 

generic further submission on flood levels. 

 25 

SJH:   And are you intending to call evidence? 

 

MS HALL:   At this stage we will be putting in a submission, I will have to get 

back to you about the client’s desire to call evidence.   

 30 

  [11.00 am] 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR WILLIAMS:   Hi, my name is Reuben Williams.  I am representing myself 35 

and my partner, Sarah Beard, and also my neighbour David Reedy who 

owns a property under the Australian company, Link PTY Limited.  

The properties concerned are 48 Trent Street and 20 Linwood Avenue. 

 

 The issues we have are to do with mapping again, which I believe is to 40 

do with the coarseness of the City Council model.  The jagged edges 

appear to be sort of roughly a 10 metre interval, so that to me, it seems 

like the model has been output at a resolution of 10 metre cells.  I 

believe if that was output at something say one metre or half a metre 

then our properties would be eliminated from the floor – both floor 45 

level zones. 
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 I have a question, I would like to produce some maps to explain my 

position – do I have to produce that as evidence or can I submit with 

those images? 

 5 

SJH:   You can produce them at the hearing but it is better if you are actually 

sworn and then they become formal exhibits in the hearing. 

 

MR WILLIAMS:   Okay. 

 10 

SJH:   Which we can take you through at the time or equally you can file a very 

simple brief of evidence just saying you are producing these maps.  But 

that means people may apply to question you about the maps. 

 

MR WILLIAMS:   Sure.  Well I think if I can submit with, even a photograph 15 

showing the difference in elevation, I think that would explain what I 

am trying to say. 

 

SJH:   I will come back to that, thank you. 

 20 

MR WILLIAMS:   Thank you. 

 

MS HASSAN:   Deborah Hassan and I just want to let you know that I am here 

on a private capacity.  With regards to my submission, it dealt 

specifically with just chapter 5 “Natural Hazards”, policy 5.3.3, and the 25 

policy is the protection of flood storage and overflow areas.  And the 

relief I sought was to add the Halswell River basin catchment area, 

which is in the Christchurch City zoning area, at the boundary between 

Selwyn District and Christchurch City. 

 30 

SJH:   Is it all in Christchurch City or part Christ - - -  

 

MS HASSAN:   No, only part of it is.  The upper catchment basin, before it 

flows into the Halswell, where a lot of development is happening at the 

moment, both industrial, residential and commercial being proposed, is 35 

actually in the Christchurch City environs.  But it does flow down 

through into the Halswell River. and the Halswell River the concern is 

for the downstream people, is that in the design of area plans and 

retention basins, there does not seem to be an coordinated approach to 

stop flooding downstream. 40 

 

 The Halswell is just a river and it takes a lot of drainage water from 

that particular area as well because there are drains in both the 

Christchurch area and the Selwyn, and if they are not managed, 

consequently what happens is the drains cannot compete with the river 45 



 Page 26 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 27.01.15 

flows and flows happening earlier upstream and consequently 

downstream flooding occurs. 

 

 And the flooding stays there longer on the duration of the time than 

what it ever did before the development started happening, so I would 5 

understand that this would be a Regional Council issue, but when you 

are looking at mentioning area plans and development plans are being 

submitted with storm water retention basins, there needs to be a 

coordinated approach as to what happens downstream and 

consequently at the bottom of all of this catchment is Lake Ellesmere 10 

and Te Waihora and also along that catchment there are the townships 

of Prebbleton which is being developed towards the Halswell River.   

 

  [11.05 am] 

 15 

 That is Prebbleton township with regards to further growth and also 

there is limited growth in Tai Tapu but Tai Tapu also have 

infrastructure that needs to be protected as well, with pumping 

chambers. 

 20 

 We need to find a solution and it is a coordinated approach and that is 

why I was just looking at adding the Halswell River Basin catchment 

area as to the relief to the existing policy because it seems to have been 

considered by the Christchurch City Council with regards to the Lower 

Styx Basin and the development that is happening upstream through 25 

there, but with regard to the Upper Halswell Basin it just seems to have 

been missed out and mentioning it in words.  It does say for example 

but I think the Halswell River catchment is important that it needs to be 

mentioned in the policy. 

 30 

SJH:   And do you propose to call evidence or just make a submission? 

 

MS HASSAN:   No, I just intend making a submission on that particular policy 

just to add the Halswell River Basin.  I think I have explained the 

reasons why adequately. 35 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS HASSAN:   If that is included in that particular policy 5.3.3 then I would 

not be needing to make a submission, but as I note in my submission in 40 

other chapters there is some consequential amendments that will need 

to be made recognising the Halswell River Basin area and that includes 

chapter 8 district wide, subdivision and development, servicing. 

 

45 
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 I am also wanting to recognise the Halswell River with regards to 

esplanade reserve and esplanade strips appendices and in chapter 14 

residential part, I want to include a policy with regards to the 

management of all of these storm water developments, retention basins 

having a coordinated approach as to when they can release their basin 5 

to stop the flooding from the downstream residents and the Prebbleton 

and Tai Tapu. 

 

 And I note that in a further submission that this submission was 

actually supported by Selwyn District Council. 10 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  All right, thank you, just to go back again to the process.  

The process is that the Council’s proponent and we will call evidence 

to support that and as you have heard we earlier directed that that 

evidence be filed by 5.00 pm on Friday the 13th of February next.  That 15 

will be posted online, can I just suggest to submitters who have 

indicated that they wish to submit and not give evidence and are not 

calling expert evidence, if on reviewing that evidence you find that you 

believe there are factual mistakes in relation to your property, what you 

have said about submitting and calling evidence today would not 20 

preclude you from filing evidence correcting those mistakes. 

 

 But the timeframe for submitter evidence including rebuttal of that 

evidence if you feel there is factual inaccuracy is 5.00 pm on Friday the 

20th of February and the Council’s response by the 27th so there is the 25 

opportunity once you see the Council evidence to decide you will file 

evidence as opposed to making a submission.   

 

 The form of that, you can ask Dr Cowie about, he will describe the 

form of that evidence.  I just go back again when you are making 30 

submissions you may, if you wish to, file a further written submission.  

When you come to present there will be a time limit and what we are 

looking for, if you like, is a highlights package, because your 

submission will be read in advance, they have already been read, but 

they will be read again.   35 

 

  [11.10 am] 

 

 But there will be the opportunity for you to highlight to us in your 

submissions the concerns you have.  There will also be the right for all 40 

submitters who have indicated they wish to be heard to apply to cross-

examine any witnesses – and I will come back and repeat this – but that 

is to be by 5.00 pm on Wednesday 25 February.   

 

45 
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 From what we have heard we would expect the council to endeavour to 

visit all of those properties where a site visit could resolve matters that 

we have heard of this morning.  I think it is also apparent that 

mediation would be of assistance here – one for rock fall, one for 

flooding and one for liquefaction.  And there may be, particularly 5 

around the sealed mass movement area, no need for a formal mediation 

but a visit from Council officers if the area is as small as has been 

described.   

 

 We understand the time constraints, which may be one of the reasons 10 

around this, but Ms Scott, I take it the Council would not be adverse to 

us directing there be mediation in those three areas? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  No, the Council would not be opposed to that.  

What it has some concerns with is a whole lot of site specific 15 

mediations over the next two weeks.  But if there was to be one focused 

mediation on a topic over a limited period of time, absolutely it would 

not be opposed.   

 

SJH:   Well the difficulty about that is a lot of these matters are clearly site 20 

specific.  They are matters that have been going on for some time, and 

we are not judging the truth or otherwise of this at the moment, but a 

number of submitters are telling us they have not had a visit from the 

Council or they have not had a response to their requests.  And if those 

issues, I mean, if you would sooner that you get off and see them, by all 25 

means do so. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and I understand that that is what is happening and has 

been happening, but in the limited time available the Council’s strong 

preference is that it takes the information that it has from that ground 30 

truthing exercise and puts it into a comprehensive set of evidence 

which will assist the Panel in terms of the time available.  It is 

obviously the same people that need to prepare that evidence that will 

also be doing the site visits. 

 35 

SJH:   I understand this, but a lot of these things pre-date the notification of the 

plan, do they not? 

 

MS SCOTT:   They do, sir.  They do. And by way of example, Ms Young’s, 

the four land owners at Lyttelton have been in discussions with the 40 

Council and the Council has acknowledged that in respect of four of the 

properties, that there was an error there and has sent an open letter 

clarifying that.  They also have considered the extra part of the land 

that Ms Young has raised and has responded to that.  So it has already 

considered the geotechnical information that was provided by those 45 

submitters and has essentially already been through that process. 
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MR YOUNG:   Excuse me, Panel, may I speak? 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 5 

MR YOUNG:   I have been in contact with Council pretty much since the 

GNS report was released with concerns that there were inaccuracies in 

it.  I have been to visit the Council, had meetings with the geotech 

engineers asking them to go up and have a look.  There are massive 

discrepancies in the amount of evidence versus the life-risk rating put 10 

on it.  But they just do not get back to me.  And apparently they have 

been up to look at the site but have not contacted either me or Richard 

or any of the other people affected by it.   

 

  [11.15 am] 15 

 

SJH:   Well I do not want to get into the merits and the rights and wrongs of 

that today, but site specific or otherwise, we are satisfied there should 

be mediations, firstly on rock fall.  We will make a facilitator available.  

Persons who wish to attend that should, again, stay behind and notify 20 

staff.  They should notify whether it is general or site specific.  If it is 

general then we can arrange a period for you to attend to address those 

general issues.  If it is site specific there will need to be a Council 

officer here who understands the issues and can discuss it with a 

mediator who will facilitate the process.  The same will apply to 25 

flooding and the same will apply for liquefaction. 

 

 Some of the other matters raised I think require some investigation.  

The one that is apparently supported by the Selwyn District Council, if 

that is so, there is probably not a great, I imagine the Christchurch City 30 

would take the same view.  So perhaps that is something that can be 

looked at and be resolved quite simply.  So I am sure you have picked 

up on all of that Ms Scott. 

 

 We will have to find out when a facilitator is available for those three 35 

things, and we will notify them.  We cannot actually set a date today 

until we find that out, but we will consult with Council to see that a 

suitable Council officer will be available on those days, Ms Scott. 

 

 As far as the submitters are concerned, I am afraid, because of the time 40 

constraints, you will need to fit in as far as possible with these dates 

that we set.  

 

 Again, I repeat, there are two sorts of site visits.  Ms Scott was talking 

about visits from Council officers and Council experts.  What I was 45 

talking about earlier, if any submitters think it will be useful to the 
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Panel’s deliberations to have us attend and see your property then we 

are quite willing to do so.  You will need to, again, stay behind and 

advise staff of this, and we will also need not only a guide, but 

someone who can point out the mapping lines on the property to us 

when we attend the site, Ms Scott. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just on that last point, Ms Scott, it may be useful, for 

instance, to have an indicative post highlight, bright coloured or 

whatever, to show a line, and that information to be described in the 

guide which the Panel would follow when they go to the visit. 10 

 

 And that of course would require the Council to go ahead of us a bit, go 

onto those properties and discussion with the owner if necessary, to 

ensure that line is in a fair and accurate place, because the last thing we 

want is some sort of argument between – or just to confusion as to what 15 

we are looking at on the land. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, we can have that happen. 

 

SJH:   The other thing I need to say about a site visit that it is not an 20 

opportunity to capture our ear.  We are there to view the site.  You can 

point out the concerns to us, but we are not there to hear your 

submission in evidence, that must be done here in front of everybody in 

an open forum.  So if you just bear that in mind. 

 25 

 And if you are unable for some reason to be present on the days that are 

available to us, as long as the lines are clearly marked, we will have 

your submission, we will take it with us and we will consider that.  But 

again, as I repeat, you will need to advise staff before you leave today, 

and we will set a program around that as with mediation.  30 

 

MR WARD:   Sir, my name is Martin Ward and I am friend of the Laryns, 

assisting them with this process.  Just returning to your procedural 

comments around mediation, the Laryns are very open to mediation, 

but there is yet no basis for it.  And if during the course of the next few 35 

weeks Council does get someone out on site to do the ground truthing 

that they are seeking then mediation might be possible.  So perhaps the 

mediation timetable can provide for late entries on that basis. 

 

MR KINGHAM:   Yes, my name is Simon Kingham.  I think like many people 40 

here, and the gentleman over there saying it would be a complete waste 

of money for you to come to my site, but I would want you to if I 

cannot get the Council to it, and at the moment I have not been told 

whether the Council would visit it, so I am not quite sure the process to 

ensure that we can get the Council to come and look at it.  We do not 45 

speak to Ms Scott, I assume? 
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  [11.20 am] 

 

SJH:   Well, she is here. 

 5 

MR KINGHAM:   Well, sorry about that. 

 

SJH:   No, I think, Ms Scott, that you are going to assist us, I am not sure if 

there is any Council officers here this morning to help you?  There is?  

Well, I think they need to take a list and they need to facilitate that 10 

process. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, Ms Carter is here and perhaps once this finishes we can 

stick around for a little bit longer. 

 15 

SJH:   We are going to have – because there is a lot of you, we are going to 

have to ask you to be patient and work through this with Ms Carter 

with our staff, so we capture all of this information.  Ms Carter, if you 

just stand up and they can – all right, thank you, and if we need to 

facilitate with a room for you or something we can easily do that.   20 

 

 Yes? 

 

MR ABBOTT:   Chris Abbott, Boulder Bay, I am just wondering rather than 

have the Panel come all the way out to Boulder Bay, which is a lovely 25 

drive, but whether a video would be acceptable for you to actually get 

awareness of the surroundings there? 

 

SJH:   By all means, but if we are going to be visiting out in that region we 

may as well, it depends on the number of requests we get. 30 

 

MR ABBOTT:   The closest to that region is Taylors Mistake, and we are half 

an hour’s walk from that.   

 

SJH:   Well, Council can provide us with a helicopter.   35 

 

MR ABBOTT:   We have a pad in front of our bach which has been used once. 

 

SJH:   No, a video would be perfectly acceptable.   

 40 

MR ABBOTT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Anyone else got a question on process or any of the issues that we have 

raised?  Yes? 

 45 

MS YOUNG:   Karen Young, sir. 
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SJH:   Just wait for the microphone if you would be so good. 

 

MS YOUNG:   Karen Young, number 792.  If we go to mediation and it is in 

our favour, does that mean we still need to attend the hearing? 5 

 

SJH:   Well, it is not a matter of being in your favour, it is a matter of reaching 

a resolution that means you no longer wish to make a submission or 

call evidence, and you will have to decide that when you see the 

outcome of the mediation.  But if you reach an agreement that is 10 

acceptable so that you no longer wish to submit, you would simply, as 

part of the facilitator’s process, advise them you no longer wish to 

submit, that would go to our staff and we would be informed and you 

do not need to attend. 

 15 

MS YOUNG:   Right, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just to clarify, just the consequence of a successful 

mediation is that the facilitator provides to the Panel a document which 

records what the parties have agreed to, which is signed by the parties, 20 

and it comes in as part of the record and it is part of what we consider 

in making our decision.  So effectively it has an important role to play 

if it shows agreement between the parties. 

 

SJH:   I think the other comment from what we have heard, is that it would 25 

make sense that we give a couple of weeks before we start setting down 

dates – we will set them down but we will allow a couple of weeks for 

site visits and for that process to be worked through.   

 

MR COOK:   If we were to enter mediation and the outcome was not 30 

acceptable or satisfactory, we can still continue with our submission? 

 

SJH:   Absolutely, it does not impinge on your rights to submit, give evidence, 

cross-examine or anything in any way at all, and sometimes mediation 

will simply narrow the issues a little bit but not completely resolve it. 35 

 

MR COOK:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   So it does not impinge on your rights whatsoever.   

 40 

MR FLOERL:   Oliver Floerl, just a general question to the mediation, would 

all the parties whose names are on the title, like in this case my partner, 

also have to be there if a document has to be signed at the end or might 

be signed with an understanding under an agreement, because we do 

not live in the region at the moment, just to be sure. 45 
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SJH:   No, but you should bring with you a signed authority to bind the other 

person.  In other words they would sign something that you are their 

authorised agent for the purposes of the mediation.   

 

MR FLOERL:   And this will have to be signed by a Justice of the Peace or 5 

something? 

 

SJH:   Yes.  That would be sufficient for those purposes. 

 

MR FLOERL:   Okay, thank you. 10 

 

MR ……….:   I might have missed something about mediation, actually to 

clarify for me personally, who will initiate it and when and how? 

 

SJH:   It will be initiated by our Secretariat once we have appointed suitable 15 

facilitators who will be experienced in this area.  We will have to set 

the dates, as I have indicated; we probably need to allow a couple of 

weeks in which sites can be visited.  It will take place here, and the 

Secretariat will notify you of dates and times. 

 20 

  [11.25 am] 

 

MR ……….:   All right, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Any other questions about any matters whatsoever? 25 

 

DR COWIE:   Sir, just one thing, briefly.  I am away out of town for a major 

consent hearing for the weeks from the 13th until the 27th of February.  

So Mr Langman (ph 0.38) and I will discuss who it is best that people 

contact during that period.  I will be contactable but I will not be 30 

getting back to people until probably late in the evening of those days.   

 

SJH:   All right.   Well thank you for that, I was aware of it.  But it is a matter 

that the Panel will address, and it will be a matter for the Secretariat to 

sort out, because someone has to be available.   35 

 

MS YOUNG:   Karen Young, number 792.  I just had a question for the 

Hearing Panel.  If a discussion was going to take place with regards to 

compensation for fees incurred with regards to Duncan Cotterill, and 

Coffey’s in our particular case has been $15,000.  Just wondered 40 

whether it was going to be a discussion of the Panel whether there 

would be compensation at all? 

 

SJH:   It is not within our jurisdiction, I am afraid.   

 45 

MS YOUNG:   Okay, thank you. 
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SJH:   I am sorry, but it is not.  Anything else?  Anything Dr Mitchell? 

 

MR MITCHELL:   The only thing that I was wondering, sir, is that it does 

occur to me that the submitters, in a number of cases, are going to have 5 

to wait and see the Council’s evidence before they know whether the 

relief that they have been seeking has or has not been able to be 

accommodated by the ground truthing.  And I am just wondering 

whether there would be merit, accepting that experts are busy writing 

evidence, but whether it might be possible to get a schedule in shorter 10 

order that simply sets out whether the property has been ground 

truthed, whether it is proposed to be ground truthed, whether the 

submission has been accepted in part or in whole, and that to be 

circulated to the parties so that people have a better idea as to where 

they might be going, evidence or submissions wise. 15 

 

SJH:   Well I imagine that is probably at Ms Carter’s fingertips?   

 

MS CARTER:   Not at my fingertips, but we are obviously going through that 

process to decide which ones we can accept the relief.  But I would not 20 

say that I was through all of them yet, in terms of preparing my 

evidence. 

 

 Also in terms of the geotechnical people, I know that they have got a 

long list of sites to visit.  They are currently going through it.  We have 25 

three geotechnical engineers out there now going to various sites.  So 

there is, what I would call a “hit list” of sites that we are trying to get 

round before evidence is filed.  But I would not say at this stage that it 

was complete. 

 30 

SJH:   Well, as far as you are able, presumably that can be made available to 

those submitters and it made available to the Secretariat to post on the 

website.   

 

 No, the Deputy Chair has suggested that it seems to me that when you 35 

file the Council evidence there should be a schedule attached to it that 

indicates where the submission is accepted in whole or in part, so that 

the submitters do not need to go through the whole of the evidence to 

find the answer for their own particular property.  That should not 

prove very difficult, should it, Ms Scott? 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, we can certainly do that.   

 

SJH:   Okay. 

 45 

MS SCOTT:   And we will provide that when the evidence is filed. 
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SJH:   Yes, filed. 

 

MS SCOTT:   And as well, we will provide in the same way that we have in 

previous hearings, a marked up version of the chapter. 5 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   And that will show the submission, and the submission number, 

where that change has come from.  10 

 

SJH:   Great, thank you. 

 

MR COWIE:   Sir, just in the matter of costs.  I did hold out some hope to a 

couple of submitters that the Ministry for the Environmental Legal Aid 15 

Fund may provide some money.  The answer from them is an 

unequivocal “no”.  So there is no hope with funding for submitters 

through that I am afraid.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.   20 

 

  [11.30 am] 

 

MR INGLIS:   Thank you, Graeme Inglis, 80 Cressy Terrace.  Can I just ask a 

question about the caucusing of expert evidence?  The truncated area 25 

for this hearing has really created a demand for geotech expertise and 

pushed up the price beyond what some of us are able to afford.  I guess 

my question is about whether that caucusing is about generic issues 

related to the technical evidence or whether that caucusing is also 

taking place on a site specific basis for those people who do not have 30 

geotechnical representation? 

 

SJH:   At the moment it will be generic I would say.  We will have to go back 

because and I know it has been going on for some time to find out 

when we can expect a report, but unless you had an expert dealing on a 35 

site specific basis it is more likely to be generic. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   Sue Stubenvoll, submission 845.  Would it be possible 

for Council to let the submitters know when their experts are coming to 

visit for ground truthing because given that the ground truthing which 40 

was originally relied upon by Council has been shown to have some 

errors in it, particularly for example at Norton and Endeavour, that it 

would be an awful shame if they made the same error again and 

sometimes having the onsite with them, the expert who has spent a lot 

of time preparing the submission might be able to guide Council’s 45 

experts to features which they might have missed? 
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SJH:   I would take it as a given they would make contact and do it in that 

manner. 

 

MS STUBENVOLL:   So far I understand that that is not true. 5 

 

SJH:   Well it better change from today.  I am sure Ms Scott will convey that to 

Ms Carter I cannot be more direct than that. 

 

MR YOUNG:   John Young, 136.  My question is directly to the Council, has 10 

there been a deliberate action to exclude the landowners and 

stakeholders - - -  

 

SJH:   That is not an appropriate – from what? 

 15 

MR YOUNG:   From being included in site visits and the ground expert - - -  

 

SJH:   Expert conferencing and such like? 

 

MR YOUNG:   No, to let the landowners know that - - -  20 

 

SJH:   If you wish to cross-examine Council witnesses you may do so.  This 

pre-hearing is not the appropriate place to investigate that, but if you 

wish to cross-examine them on that you can apply to cross-examine. 

 25 

MR YOUNG:   Yes, fair enough. 

 

MS DAWSON:   The only thing I was going to reinforce has been said, the 

importance of the ground truthing and the contact and communication 

with the property owners both that is going to happen and what the 30 

Council’s experts have decided, having visited the property, so the 

individual landowners know whether there is a need to come to 

mediation, the worthwhileness of mediation and then of course the 

preparation of their evidence. 

 35 

 So the ground truthing and the communication with the landowners 

about the results of that is crucial to the process moving smoothly 

through the mediation and evidence steps, I would have thought. 

 

SJH:   Yes, it is surprising it has not been addressed to date to be honest, Ms 40 

Scott. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, thank you, Ms Dawson, and sir, I will make sure that that is 

improved. 

 45 

SJH:   I knew you would. 
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MS SCOTT:   Just one other point while I am standing, the results of the expert 

caucusing, I know a lot of concerns that the submitters have that are 

here are site specific.  Some of them are more general and I hope that 

some of their concerns might be addressed through the caucusing 5 

reports that are to come.  I know it is outside our hands in terms of 

when they do appear, but I ask that everyone has a read of them and see 

if they do assist with addressing their concerns. 

 

SJH:   We will have the Secretariat check when we can expect those reports 10 

and I do think we will, once they are available and posted on the 

website, email all submitter advising that those caucusing statements 

will be available on the website which will be sooner rather than later I 

hope. 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Are there any other queries? 

 

  [11.35 am] 20 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   Yes, Richard Holyoake, 606.  I have just got a question 

regarding whether apparent errors in the rock fall sources on maps and 

properties may not currently be zoned as rock fall area one or two but 

after ground truthing, or further ground truthing, they maybe should be 25 

zoned as that, what is the process that will happen there? 

 

SJH:   Are you talking about from the Panel’s perspective on the basis of 

evidence we hear or something that happens with Council’s further 

investigations? 30 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   I am really talking about if the further investigations show 

that a rock bluff, for example, which is a hazard, is above a property 

that currently has no zoning over it at all, what happens through the 

whole process?  Does it get notified, does it - - -  35 

 

SJH:   Well if there was evidence in front of us that suggested that was 

necessary, we have power to direct Council to notify such matters, call 

for submissions and hear it later.  If the Council wanted to do it of its 

own volition they would have to come back to us and submit evidence 40 

on it and go through that process. 

 

MR HOLYOAKE:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   One would hope it was kind of done to the Nth degree however, but – 45 

any other queries?  All right.  Well thank you.   
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 What I will confirm is that the Council’s evidence is to be filed by 

5.00 pm, 13 February 2015.  Submitter evidence and you will recall my 

comments in that relation after we have read the Council evidence 

including rebuttal, is 5.00 pm Friday 20 February.  Rebuttal evidence 5 

from Council by 27 February.  Any applications for cross-examination 

to be made in writing, seeking leave by 5.00 pm on Wednesday 25 

February.   

 

 We will direct mediation.  We will arrange mediators, and we will 10 

advise dates.   

 

 For the purpose of our direction we direct that any submitters who wish 

the Panel to undertake a site visit should notify the Secretariat before 

leaving today and we will organise such site visits before the hearing.   15 

 

 And to confirm that the Council’s evidence will include a schedule 

covering the matters we referred to earlier, Ms Scott, and a marked up 

version showing what submissions are accepted, accepted in part, or 

rejected.   20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  Dr Mitchell is raising the point about how helpful it 

would be if that schedule could be arrived at earlier.  Certainly if in the 

process we have outlined, and Ms Carter has undertaken to facilitate, 

people drop off the list or their submission is accepted in part or 25 

rejected, they could be notified directly as soon as that decision is made 

– even if the schedule does not come in until the evidence is filed.   

 

 And I think we should so direct Ms Scott that if any decisions are made 

following ground truthing or site visits that lead to a submission being 30 

accepted, a submission being accepted in part, or a submission being 

totally rejected, the submitter and the Secretariat should be advised 

immediately. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.   35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay.   

 

SJH:   Yes, it is the point Ms Dawson made.  It is communication and while we 

understand all the pressures and difficulty people are under, so much of 40 

this has been about communication and we need to try and better 

ourselves on that regard.   
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  [11.40 am] 

 

 All right, well thank you everybody.  If those who wish to stay behind 

and organise the matters we referred to, if you have any other queries 

do not hesitate to ask the Friend of the Submitter and feel free to 5 

approach the Secretariat at any time regarding any other issues you 

have between now and the hearing commencing on 2 March. 

 
MATTER ADJOURNED AT 11.40 AM ACCORDINGLY 


